
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD GENERAL MEETING 
Workforce Development Board Conference Room 

Workforce Development Department Administration Office 
290 North "D" Street, 5th Floor, San Bernardino, California 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2020 AT 12:00 PM -2:00 PM 

This agenda contains a brief description of each item of business to be considered at today's meeting. In accordance with the Brown Act, this meeting agenda is 
posted at least 72 hours prior to the regularly scheduled meeting on the Workforce Development Board website and on the official Workforce Development Board Bulletin 
Board outside of the Workforce Development Department Administration Office at 290 North D Street, 6th Floor, San Bernardino, CA 92415. The agenda, its supporting 
documents and all writings received by the Board related to these items are public records and available for review during regular business hours at the WOO Administration 
Office at 290 North D Street, 5th Floor, San Bernardino, CA 92415. The agenda and its supporting documents can be viewed online at www.SBCountv.gov/workforce. 
However, the online agenda may not include all available supporting documents nor the most current version of documents. Items listed on the Consent Calendar are 
expected to be routine and non-controversial and, unless the Board directs that an item be held for further discussion, the entire Consent Calendar will be acted upon as 
the first item of business on the Discussion Calendar. 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item on the agenda and on any matter that is within the Board's jurisdiction. To address the Board regarding an 
item that is on the agenda, complete and submit the purple form entitled "Public Comment". These requests must be submitted to the Executive Secretary to the Board prior 
to the time the item is called for consideration or prior to the public comments section on the agenda. The Chair will call speakers forward to present their comments at the 
appropriate time. 

Conflict of Interest Advisement 
WDB members please be advised: If an item on the Agenda relates to the provision of services by you, your immediate family, the entity you represent, or any person 
who has made $250 in campaign contributions to you during the last twelve months, or if approval or disapproval of an Agenda item would have a foreseeable material 
effect on an economic interest of you, your immediate family, or the entity you represent, then please follow these procedures: 
"When the Agenda item is first introduced, please immediately announce that you are recusing yourself from participating in the agenda item, and then refrain from 
discussing, voting on, or otherwise influencing the Board's consideration of the Agenda item." 

AGENDA 
12:00 PM CONVENE MEETING OF THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

OPENING 
1) 
2) 
3) 
4) 

Chair Call Meeting to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Adoption of the Agenda 
Introductions 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
5) Approval of Minutes from the October 16, 2019 Workforce Development Board General Meeting 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
6) Comments from the General Public in Attendance 

DISCUSSION 
7) 
8) 

Approval of Amended and Restated Workforce Development Board By Laws 
WDB Annual Retreat 

REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
9) Committee Reports 

• Executive Board 
• Special Populations Committee 
• Economic Development and Business Resource Committee 
• Youth Committee 

10) One-Stop Operator Report 
11) Media/PR Report 
12) Economic Development Agency 
13) County Report 

ADJOURNMENT 

In conformity with Government Code section 54957.5, any writing that is a public record, that relates to an item listed on the Agenda, and that will be distributed to all or 
a majority of the Board less than 72-hours prior to this meeting (or is distributed at this meeting), will be available for public inspection at the time the writing is distributed. 
This inspection may be made at the office of the Workforce Development Department, 290 North D Street, 6th Floor, San Bernardino, California 92415, or during this 
meeting. The Workforce Development Board meeting facility is accessible to persons with disabilities. If assistive listening devices or other auxiliary aids or services are 
needed in order to participate in the public meeting, requests should be made through the Board Secretary at least three (3) business days prior to the Board meeting. 
The Board Secretary's telephone number is (909) 387-9862 and the office is located at 290 North D Street, 6th Floor, San Bernardino, California 92415. California Relay 
Service 711 

This WIOA Title -I financially assisted program or activity is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aides and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. 



MEETING DATE: 

ITEM: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTED BY: 

CONSENT _X_ 

San Bernardino County 
Workforce Development Board 

Agenda Item 

February 12, 2020 

(5) 

Minutes from October 16, 2019 Workforce Development Board 
General Meeting 

Molly Wiltshire, Assistant Director 
Workforce Development Department (WDD) 

DISCUSSION_ INFORMATION __ 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Minutes from October 16, 2019 Workforce Development Board 
General Meeting 

BACKGROUND: See attached minutes 



ATTENDANCE: 

Members 

Phil Cothran (Chair) 

Will Sterling (Vice-
Chair) 
B.J. Patterson 
(Second Vice-Chair) 
John Andrews 

Ken Boshart 

Rene Castellanos 

Ricardo Cisneros 

Mike Gallo 

Cherilyn Greenlee 

OPENING 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING 
Workforce Development Board Conference Room 

Workforce Development Department Administration Office 
290 North D Street, 5th Floor, San Bernardino, California 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2019, 12:00 p.m. 

MEETING MINUTES 

- StafftoWDB 
Present Present 

X Robert Loeun X Devra Bell 

X Dale Marsden Reg Javier 

Paul Moreno X Molly Wiltshire 

X Tony Myrell 

X Jon Novack WOO Staff & Other 

Henry Fred Burks 
Shannon 
Anita X Curtis Compton 
Tuckerman 

X Jonathan X Mariann Johnson 
Weldy 

X Joseph Stephanie Murillo 
Williams 

1) Chair Call Meeting to Order at 12:06 pm 
2) Pledge of Allegiance was led by Will Sterling 

Present 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

3) Adoption of the Agenda - Chair noted that items 6 & 8 will be presented after item 14. The 
Chair requested a motion to adopt the agenda as modified. Will Sterling motioned; Mike Gallo 
seconded the motion. None opposed. Motion carried. 

4) Introductions - The Chair reported that Ricardo Cisneros had joined the General Board, but 
was unable to attend. He reported that Jon Novack had submitted his resignation to the 
Board, which will become effective after the end of the year. He also reported on changes to 
the Committee Chairs, which included B.J. Patterson, Chair of the Youth Committee; Anita 
Tuckerman, Chair of the EDBR Committee; and Jonathan Weldy, Chair of the Special 
Populations Committee. Phil Cothran then began introductions for all attendees at the 
meeting. 

PRESENTATION 
5) Curt Hagman, Chairman, San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors 
Chairman Hagman thanked the Board members for all of their hard work on behalf of the County. 
He provided updates regarding the County, which included challenges in finding workers for 
distribution positions, as they are highly technical in nature, but the pay is high. He discussed the 
continued growth at the airport and the expectation that jobs should grow. Technology will be 
paramount for the future growth in County and there are goals to make San Bernardino a "smart" 



County, with higher paying jobs and lots of growth opportunities. There is the potential to have a 
Drone division in the County, so they may be used for assessing wildfires, determining homeless 
populations and many other possibilities. Overall, Chairman Hagman stated that the County's 
economics are good, raises had been put through and the Board of Supervisors would like to 
coordinate with the Workforce Development Board to make progress on all of these initiatives. 

A discussion ensued about connecting employers and associations with the Workforce Board 
members to build relationships. This could be done via video teleconferencing, to make it more 
convenient for the parties to connect to one another and continue building on those relationships 
overtime. 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
7) Approval of Minutes from the May 29-31, 2019 Workforce Development Board General 
Meeting 
The Chair requested a motion to approve the minutes from the May 29-31, 2019 General Board 
meeting. Anita Tuckerman motioned; Ken Boshart seconded the motion. None opposed. Motion 
carried. 

DISCUSSION/CONSENT 

9) Ratification of Contract Award for Business Process Improvement Consulting Services 
10) Ratification of Contract Award for Business Workshops 
11) Ratification of Contract Award for Human Resource Hotline Services 
12) Approval of Workforce Development Board Policies 
13) Approval of Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding for the Inland Empire 

Regional Planning Unit 
14) Approval of Contracts for the Inland Empire Regional Planning Unit Prison to 

Employment Initiative 

The Chair requested a motion to approve items 9-14 above via consent. Will Sterling motioned; 
Robert Loeun seconded the motion. None opposed. Motion carried. 

PRESENTATION ( continued) 
6) General Atomics Apprenticeship Partnership 
Kristi Montes provided an update of the Electronics Technician Apprenticeship Program (ETAP). 
She discussed the process utilized to determine eligibility for a candidate to participate in the 
program, which included identifying skills using a baseline assessment (CASAS). Their score 
would be shared with Victor Valley College personnel and then General Atomics personnel. 
Mariann Johnson noted that the initial search for potential candidates were the result of sending 
flyers to individuals, sharing with others, use of CalJOBS and partnerships between various 
entities. Screening is underway for the next group that will begin in January. A discussion ensued 
regarding the number of spots available, grant funding opportunities and length of program. Ms. 
Montes offered to provide a tour of General Atomics to the General Board members at a future 
date. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
8) Comments from the General Public in Attendance 
There were no public comment cards presented. 



REPORTS AND INFORMATION 
15) One-Stop Operator Report 
Angela Gardner discussed the Workforce System Partner Summit that was held on June 6, 2019 
at Entrepreneur High School. There was a full day of events, plenary, speakers and speed 
networking, which was the most popular event. A video was created and was shown to the Board 
members during the meeting. She noted that Will Sterling spent time the day before and the day 
of the event assisting with the set-up of the technology. Ms. Gardner thanked Dr. Audrey Mathews 
for allowing the event to be held at her school. She will be presenting the One Stop Operator 
work plan at the next General Board meeting, scheduled for December 11, 2019. 

16) Media/PR Report 
Deana Oliveras-Lambert reviewed the Media/PR report and discussed how we have evolved in 
the County. Social media continues to be utilized to communicate to the public. The 
Communications team continues to use tactical messaging when discussing the Board and our 
initiatives at various Chamber events, through the various speaking engagements and on panels 
at conferences. 

17) Economic Development Report 
Monique Carter provided an update regarding Economic Development Agency (EDA). They are 
preparing for the next State of the County event that will be held on February 5, 2020, with the 
theme "Vision 2020". EDA is also preparing for a new trade mission in Taiwan next year. In 
support of tourism in the County, EDA is working on hotel development, as they anticipate 28 new 
hotels will be built in the County by 2023. 

18) County Report 
Molly Wiltshire provided an update on the Y4 event that took place at the DoubleTree Hilton in 
Ontario. She reported on the Labor Market Intelligence report and the work with U.C. Riverside, 
who is hosting the focus groups. Ms. Wiltshire informed the Board of invitations to a few upcoming 
events, including a celebration for Dr. Angelov Farooq on October 29th, as well as the Community 
Gathering of Excellence that will be held on November 131h, with Suzi Levine as the keynote 
speaker. In addition, the High Desert Opportunities Summit will be held on October 24th and 
Workforce Development will have a booth with the services we offer. 

ADJOURNMENT 
The Chair called for a motion to adjourn. Anita Tuckerman motioned; John Andrews seconded 
the motion. None opposed. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 1 :37 pm. 

The next Workforce Development Board General Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 
December 11, 2019 at 12:00 pm to be held at WDD Admin, 290 North D Street, 5th Floor, San 
Bernardino, CA 92415. 

Devra Bell, WDB Secretary 



MEETING DATE: 

ITEM: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTED BY: 

CONSENT __ 

San Bernardino County 
Workforce Development Board 

Agenda Item 

February 12, 2020 

(7) 

AMENDED AND RESTATED WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
BYLAWS 

Molly Wiltshire, Assistant Director 
Workforce Development Department 

DISCUSSION_X_ INFORMATION __ 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the amendments to the Workforce Development Board By-laws for 
submission to the Board of Supervisors (BOS). 

BACKGROUND: On August 25, 2015, the BOS established the WDB and approved the process for 
appointment of nominees and applicants to the WDB. On January 20, 2016, the Workforce Development 
Board (WDB) adopted the WDB By-laws and subsequently, on March 1, 2016, the BOS approved the By
laws as required under the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA) and in accordance with the 
County of San Bernardino Handbook for Members of Advisory Boards, Commissions, and Committees, 
federal and state laws, and regulations. 

On January 17, 2020, the WDB members were notified of the proposed amendments in writing, per the 
requirements of the 2016 By-laws. Adjustments have been made to format and layout and proposed 
significant updates and/or revisions include: 

• Authorized Duties and Responsibilities - revised section language regarding the designation 
of a One-Stop Operator and provided a description about the One-Stop Operators role of 
coordinating partnerships for the America's Job Center of California System. 

• Selection of Members and Membership Terms - added details on the application and 
nomination process and submittal to the Clerk of the Board and provided clarity on staggering 
membership terms, pursuant to County Policy 02-04. 

• Election of Officers - revised section language to state elections will be conducted annually at a 
WDB meeting between October and December. 

• Executive Board - revised section language on the structure of the Executive Board and 
provided more flexibility on regular-scheduled meetings. 

• Standing Committees - added authority of the Chair to form other Standing Committees as 
deemed necessary and added stipulation that standing committee members shall have 
appropriate experience and expertise. 

• Amendment of By-laws - revised section language to require amendments to be submitted in 
writing at least 14 days prior to the regularly scheduled WDB meeting, wherein the By-Laws are 
to be voted on for approval. 

The amendments made to the WDB By-laws follow the County handbook and appropriate federal and 
state laws, and are designed to improve efficiency and effectiveness of the WDB. 

With approval of this item, the By-laws will be submitted to the BOS on April 7, 2020. If approved, the By
laws will become effective on that date and will remain in effect until dissolution of the WDB or further 
amendment is presented to the WDB and BOS. 

Attachments: The 2020 San Bernardino County Workforce Development Board Amended and 
Restated By-Laws 



SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS 

San Bernardino Coun(l' Workforce De1·e/op111e11t Board Amended and Restated By-lm1:s 



Table of Contents 
RECITALS ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE I - NAME AND LOCATION ....................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE II- PURPOSE AND FUNCTION .................................................................................................. 3 

2.1-Authorized Duties and Responsibilities .......................................................................................... 3 
2.2 - Statutory Prohibitions and Restrictions ......................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE III - WDB MEMBERSHIP ........................................................................................................... 6 
3.1- Structure of the WDB ...................................................................................................................... 6 
3.2 - Selection of Members and Membership Terms ............................................................................. 7 
3.3 - Financial Disclosure Obligation ...................................................................................................... 8 
3.4 - Conflicts of Interest .......................................................................................................................... 8 
3.5 -Terminationand Removal ................................................................................................................ 8 

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS .......................................................................................................................... 9 
4.1-Regular Meetings .............................................................................................................................. 9 
4.2 - Special and Emergency Meetings .................................................................................................... 9 
4.3 -Notice and Conduct of Meetings ..................................................................................................... 9 
4.4- Voting ................................................................................................................................................ 9 
4.5 - Recording of Attendance ............................................................................................................... 1 O 
4.6 - Meeting Attendance ....................................................................................................................... 1 O 

ARTICLE V- QUORUM ............................................................................................................................. 11 
ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS OF THE WDB ................................................................................................. 11 

6.1 - Officers ............................................................................................................................................ 11 
6.2 - Election of Officers ................................................. ........................................................................ 11 
6.3 -Chair ............................................................................................... ................................................. 12 
6.4 - Vice-Chair .............................. ......................................................................................................... 13 
6.5 - Second Vice-Chair .......................................................................................................................... 13 
6.6 - Secretary .......................................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE VII- EXECUTIVE BOARD ....................................................................................................... 13 
ARTICLE VIII - COMMITTEES ................................................................................................................ 14 

8.1- Standing Committees ..................................................................................................................... 14 
8.2 -Ad-Hoc Committees ............................................................................................. .......................... 14 
8.3 - Committee Information ................................................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE IX- INDEMNIFICATION .......................................................................................................... 15 
9.1-Defense and Indemnification .............................................................................................. ........... 15 
9.2 - Fidelity and Bond Insurance ......................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE X - PARLIAMENT ARY PRACTICES ...................................................................................... 15 
ARTICLE XI- EXPENSES ......................................................................................................................... 15 
ARTICLE XII-AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS ........................................................................................ 15 
ARTICLE XIII - EFFECT ............................................................................................................................ 16 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY ............................................................................................................... 16 

2 

San Bernardino Coun(v Worliforce Dere/opme11t Board Amended and Restated By-laws 



SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS 

RECITALS 

The Governor of the State of California, pursuant to the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act of 2014, hereinafter called the Act or WIOA, Public Law H.R. 803, has 
designated San Bernardino County as a local Workforce Development Area for the 
operation of comprehensive workforce development system activities, and provides 
funding thereto. 

The federal and State rules and regulations promulgated pursuant to the Act require the 
establishment by the chief elected official, and certification by the Governor, of a local 
Workforce Development Board, to set policy for that portion of the statewide workforce 
development system within the local workforce development area, to wit, the County of 
San Bernardino. Having been duly established and certified, the San Bernardino County 
Workforce Development Board shall discharge its duties and provide for mandated 
program and related activities as set forth in the following Articles. 

ARTICLE I - NAME AND LOCATION 

The name of this organization shall be the SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 
WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD, hereinafter alternately referred to as WDB. 

The principal offices of the WDB shall be in the State of California and County of San 
Bernardino, and all mail should be addressed to the San Bernardino County Workforce 
Development Board. The WDB may change the principal office from one location to 
another within San Bernardino County by noting the changed address and effective date. 
Such changes of address shall not be deemed an amendment of these By-laws. 

ARTICLE II- PURPOSE AND FUNCTION 

The WDB shall be responsible to the San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors, 
hereinafter alternately referred to as BOS, for providing planning and oversight for the 
comprehensive workforce development program throughout the local Workforce 
Development Area. 

2.1 - Authorized Duties and Responsibilities 

Duties and responsibilities of the WDB are as set forth in this Section 2.1. As the WDB's 
implementation of the Act may be more (though not less) prescriptive than the Act or 
implementing regulations require, additions, deletions or changes to the duties and 

3 

San Bernardino County Workforce Dcl'elopment Board Amended and Restated By-laws 



responsibilities of the WDB may be incorporated herein in accordance with the 
provisions of Article XIII of these By-laws. Therefore, pursuant to WIOA Section 107 
( d), as a minimum: 

A. WDB shall develop a local Workforce Development Area Four-Year Plan in 
accordance with the Act, Section 108, and shall submit the plan to the Governor 
upon approval of the BOS. 

B. The WDB shall conduct research, data collection, and analysis related to the 
workforce needs of the local and regional economic conditions. Regular updates 
of such information shall include needed knowledge and skills, the workforce, 
and the workforce development activities in the region, as described in the Act, 
Section 108(b)(l)(D). 

C. The WDB shall support the Governor in developing a statewide workforce and 
labor market information system, as described in the Wagner-Peyser Act. 

D. The WDB shall coordinate and convene local workforce development system 
stakeholders to assist in the development of the local plan and in identifying 
expertise and resources to leverage support. The WDB may engage such 
stakeholders in carrying out the functions described in these By-laws. 

E. The WDB shall promote and lead efforts to engage a diverse range of employers 
and entities in the region to support utilization of the local workforce development 
system and to ensure that the workforce investment activities meet the needs of 
employers and support economic growth in the region, in accordance with the 
Act, Section 107(d)(4). The WDB shall promote participation from those 
businesses whose employment opportunities reflect existing and emerging 
regional employment opportunities. 

F. The WDB shall develop and implement promising strategies for meeting the 
employment and skill needs of workers and employers that provide the skilled 
workforce needed by the region and that expand employment and career 
advancement opportunities for participants in in-demand sectors or occupations. 

G. The WDB shall lead efforts with representatives of secondary and postsecondary 
education programs to develop and implement career pathways within the local 
area, pursuant to the Act, Section 107(d)(5). 

H. The WDB shall lead efforts in the local area to identify, promote, and disseminate 
information on proven and promising practices in meeting the needs of employers 
andjobseekers, as described in the Act, Section 107(d)(6). 

I. The WDB shall develop strategies for using technology to maximize accessibility 
and effectiveness of the local workforce development system, pursuant to the Act, 
Section 107(d)(5). 

4 

San Bernardino Countv Workforce Development Board Amended and Restated By-fall's 



J. The WDB shall provide policy oversight and ensure appropriate use and 
management of funds for employment and training activities, the one-stop 
delivery system, and programs affecting youth in the local Workforce 
Development Area. In accordance with WIOA Section 107(d)(8), WDB will 
ensure the appropriate use, management, and investment of funds to maximize 
performance outcomes. 

K. The WDB shall negotiate with the Governor to arrive at agreed upon local 
performance accountability measures for the local workforce development 
system, subject to the approval of the BOS. 

L. The WDB shall designate a One-Stop Operator in accordance with the Act, 
Section 121(d), subject to the approval of the BOS to coordinate partnerships for 
the One-Stop System, referred to as the America's Job Center of California 
System (AJCC System). 

M. The WDB shall identify eligible providers of youth activities in accordance with 
the Act, Section 123, by awarding contracts on a competitive basis, subject to the 
approval of the BOS. 

N. The WDB shall identify eligible providers of training services in accordance with 
the Act, Section 122, which includes receiving applications from providers who 
desire to provide training services within the local Workforce Development Area 
and determining a provider's initial eligibility. 

0. The WDB shall coordinate activities with education and training providers in the 
local area, including providers of adult education and literacy activities, career 
and technical education, and local agencies administering plans under Title I of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

P. The WDB shall develop a budget, subject to the approval of the BOS, to provide 
for the activities assigned it through the Act and these By-laws, in accordance 
with WIOA Section 107(d)(12). 

Q. The WDB shall assess the physical and programmatic accessibility, in accordance 
with WIOA Section 188, of all AJCCs. 

R. The WDB, with the approval of the BOS, shall develop and enter into 
Memorandums of Understanding between itself and the local AJCC System 
partners, designated in the Act, Section 121 (b ), concerning the operation of the 
AJCC System within the local Workforce Development Area, in accordance with 
the Act, Section 121(c). 

5 

San Bernardino Co1111ty Wor~forcc> D<'relopme11t Board Amended and Restatl?d By-laws 



S. The WDB may establish objective qualifications for a director and may hire other 
staff to carry out the duties assigned it through the Act and these By-laws, in 
accordance with the Act, Section 107(t). 

T. The WDB may, at the request of the Chair and with the approval of the BOS, 
initiate other duties consistent with the intent of the Act, State law and 
implementing regulations. 

2.2 - Statutory Prohibitions and Restrictions 

A. Neither the WDB nor its staff may directly provide career services or be 
designated or certified as a One-Stop operator, unless authorized by the BOS and 
the Governor. 

B. Neither the WDB nor its staff may provide training services, unless the Governor 
grants a waiver in accordance with the Act, Section 107(c). 

ARTICLE III - WDB MEMBERSHIP 

3.1 - Structure of the WDB 

The organizational structure, nomination, and appointment process for the WDB was 
established on August 25, 2015 (Item No. 59) by the BOS pursuant to Section 107(b) of 
WIOA. This Item and the Act provide that the WDB shall be comprised of nineteen (19) 
persons as described in the following categories. 

A. Business: The majority of members, ten (10), shall be representatives of 
businesses in San Bernardino County [2 representatives per Supervisorial District] 
who: 

1. Are owners of businesses, chief executives, or operating officers of 
businesses, and other business executives or employers with optimum 
policymaking or hiring authority; 

n. Represent businesses with employment opportunities that reflect the 
employment opportunities of the local area; and 

111. Are appointed from among individuals nominated by local business 
organizations and business trade associations. 

B. Workforce: Not less than twenty percent (20%) of members, four (4), shall be 
representatives of the workforce within San Bernardino County. 

1. Two (2) at-large representatives of labor organizations nominated by local 
labor federations, 

6 

Sa11 Bernardino County Workforce Dcrelopment Board Amendt'd and Restated By-laws 



11. One (1) at-large representative from a labor organization or a training 
director, from a joint labor-management apprenticeship program, or if no 
such program exists, a representative of an apprenticeship program, and 

111. One (1) at-large representative from a community-based organization with 
experience and expertise in addressing the employment needs of 
individuals with barriers to employment. 

C. Education and Training: Two (2) at-large representatives of entities administering 
education and training activities. 

1. One (1) representative of an eligible provider of adult education and 
literacy activities under Title II of the Act, nominated by local provider(s) 
of adult education and literacy, and 

ii. One (1) representative of an institution of higher education providing 
workforce investment activities, nominated by such an institution, 
including community colleges. 

D. State Employment Office: One (1) at-large representative of the State 
employment services office under the Wagner-Peyser Act serving the local area. 

E. Economic and Community Development: One (1) at-large representative of 
economic and community development entities. 

F. Vocational Rehabilitation: One (1) at-large representative of a program carried 
out under Title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

Pursuant to WIOA Section 107(a)(5), the representatives appointed to local workforce 
development boards must have optimum policy-making authority within the entity they 
represent. Optimum policy-making authority is the ability to reasonably be expected to 
speak affirmatively on behalf of the entity he or she represents and to commit the entity 
to a chosen course of action (U.S. Department of Labor Training and Employment 
Guidance Letter 27-14). 

3.2 - Selection of Members and Membership Terms 

Members of the WDB shall be nominated in accordance with the Act and appointed by 
the BOS for a two (2) year term. Per BOS (August 25, 2015, Item 59), applications and 
nominations shall be submitted to and reviewed by staff of the WDB for eligibility and 
compliance with WIOA. Applications/nominations of verified eligible members shall be 
submitted to the Clerk of the BOS (COB) for review and recommendations to the BOS 
members. 

The initial WDB member terms will be staggered to expire after one or two years. WDB 
members may be reappointed for additional two-year terms with no limit on the number 

7 

San Bernardino County IYorkforCf! Del'C'!opment Board Amended a11d Restated By-la11·s 



of terms. Each member's term will be coterminous with that of their appointing 
Supervisor. Terms for subsequent WDB members shall expire two (2) years after 
appointment unless earlier terminated or expired. Pursuant to San Bernardino County 
Policy Manual 02-09, terms of office shall be staggered so that no more than twelve (12) 
shall expire in any one-year period. A member whose appointment has expired may 
continue to serve until a new appointment is made or the BOS declares the position 
vacant. Such member is eligible for reappointment subject to County Policy 02-09 and 
Article III herein. 

3.3 - Financial Disclosure Obligation 

Members of the WDB shall comply with the California Political Reform Act of 1979 and 
any other conflicts of interest or financial disclosure requirements the State or County 
may mandate. 

3.4 - Conflicts of Interest 

Members of the WDB and any committee of the WDB are subject to the conflict of 
interest provisions set forth in the Act, Section 108(h), the Fair Political Practices Act 
(Cal. Govt. Code § 87100 et seq.), Section 1091.2 of the California Government Code, 
the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Cal. Govt. Code§ 81000), and any additional conflict 
of interest regulations or policies established by the BOS. Upon appointment to the 
WDB, members shall be provided copies of the applicable conflict of interest laws, 
regulations, and policies and shall be responsible for completing forms and trainings as 
may be legally required. Questions regarding the interpretation or applicability of such 
conflict of interest provisions shall be directed to the Office of the County Counsel. 

3.5 - Terminationand Removal 

A member of the WDB may be removed by the BOS in accordance with County of San 
Bernardino Policy No. 02-09 (Section F, 7). The right of a member to vote and all of their 
rights, title, and interest in and to the WDB shall cease upon removal. 

If a member is no longer able to effectively represent the categorical seat to which he or 
she was appointed for reasons which include, but are not limited to, frequent absences 
from meetings, or a change in employment or other status that alters the qualifications or 
conditions that were relied upon in making the initial appointment, the WDB shall, 
pursuant to a majority vote of the WDB members present at a regular or special meeting 
of the WDB, recommend to the BOS that the member be removed. 

3.6 - Resignation 

The resignation of a WDB Member shall be submitted to the Chair, Executive Director of 
the WDB, and the Clerk of the BOS (COB) and shall be effective upon receipt by the 
COB or per date of the resignation letter. 

8 

San BC'mardi110 County Workforce Developmrmt Board Amended and Restatf'd By-lm1·s 



Staff of the WDB shall immediately report any unscheduled vacancy to the COB. 

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS 

4.1 - Regular Meetings 

The WDB and its standing committees shall annually establish the dates, time, and place 
of their regular meetings. WDB regular meetings shall be held at least quarterly. 

When feasible and efficient, phone and web-based meetings may be utilized to promote 
community, WDB, and committee member participation so long as such participation 
complies with the Brown Act, specifically, Section 54953 of the California Government 
Code. 

4.2 - Special and Emergency Meetings 

The WDB and its standing committees may hold special meetings or emergency meetings 
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code§ 54950 
et seq.). 

4.3 - Notice and Conduct of Meetings 

All meetings of the WDB, the Executive Board, and its standing committees, whether 
regular, special, or emergency meetings, shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in 
accordance with the Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code§ 54950 et seq.) and 29 U.S.C. § 2832, 
subdivision (e). The order of business to be generally followed for all meetings shall 
consist of: 

1. Opening 
2. Public Comments 
3. Consent Items 
4. Discussion Items 
5. Information, Presentation, or Workshop Items Items 
6. Adjournment 

The WDB staff shall keep minutes of all regular, special, and emergency meetings of the 
WDB, the Executive Board, and its standing committees, and shall, as soon as possible 
after each meeting, provide a copy of the minutes to each member. All votes shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 

4.4- Voting 
A. Each member of the WDB shall be entitled to one vote on an action and no proxy 

votes shall be permitted. 

9 

San Bernardino County Workforce Dere/opnu!llf Board Amended and Restated By-lm1·s 



B. No member of the WDB shall cast a vote on any matter which has direct bearing 
on services to be provided by the member or any organization with which he or 
she is associated, or would otherwise be the basis for a conflict of interest, as 
outlined by these bylaws in Section 4.4. 

C. The WDB may act on matters properly agendized by a vote of a simple majority 
of the members present, provided that there is a quorum. 

4.5 - Recording of Attendance 

A. Attendance of all members present at any meeting of the WDB or its standing 
committees shall be recorded by the WDB staff. The record of attendance shall 
also indicate the members who are absent. 

B. If a register, questionnaire, or any similar document is posted or circulated at the 
meeting, it shall clearly state that completion of the document is voluntary and not 
a precondition of attendance. 

4.6 - Meeting Attendance 

Attendance by WDB members at regularly scheduled meetings is critical for the WDB to 
fulfill its functions. WDB members are expected to attend regularly scheduled general 
WDB and committee meetings of which they are a member. 

A. Members who are absent, one half (1/2) of the general WDB meetings during a 
twelve (12) month period or more than three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled 
general WDB meetings may be subject to a recommendation of removal pursuant 
to Section 4.5 herein. Additionally, members who demonstrate a substantial 
pattern of absenteeism at general WDB meetings, although in a different absentee 
pattern from the ones noted above, may also be subject to a recommendation of 
removal pursuant to Section 4.5. The Chair of the WDB may recommend to the 
WDB any member in violation of this Section, and by a majority vote of the 
WDB members where a quorum is present, the WDB may submit the member's 
name to the BOS for recommendation of removal. In the event that the Chair is 
the member in violation of this Section, the Vice-Chair may submit the name of 
the Chair to the WDB for such a vote. 

B. Committee members who are absent, from one half (1/2) of the committee 
meetings during a twelve (12) month period or more than three (3) consecutive 
regularly scheduled committee meetings may be subject to dismissal by the 
Committee Chair pursuant to Section 8.1 herein. 

C. Members shall attend meetings of the WDB and of committees to which they 
have been appointed. The WDB Chair and Committee Chairs shall routinely 
review member attendance of WDB and committee meetings. 

10 

San Bernardino Coun(v Worlforcf' De,·elopment Board Amended and Restated By-fall's 



D. Members shall notify the Chair of the WDB of any expected absence for a 
meeting by 5:00 p.m. of the day before the meeting, such notification may be 
made directly to the Chair or through WDB staff. 

ARTICLE V- QUORUM 

For any meeting of the WDB or any committee of the WDB, a quorum is achieved when 
a majority of the members appointed to such body are present at the meeting. Members 
may conduct business and vote on agenda items when a quorum is present. A meeting at 
which a quorum is initially established may not continue to transact business if the 
quorum is not maintained due to the withdrawal or departure of members. 

When less than a quorum of the WDB appears at a noticed meeting, the WDB may 
continue to meet for discussion purposes. 

ARTICLE VI-OFFICERS OF THE WDB 

6.1- Officers 

The officers shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Second Vice-Chair. WDB staff shall 
serve as Secretary to the WDB. 

The officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these By-laws, by federal and State 
law, and by the parliamentary authority adopted by the WDB. 

6.2 - Election of Officers 

The officers shall be elected via majority vote of WDB members present at a general or 
special meeting. 

A. No person shall be elected to more than one (1) office. A term of office shall be 
one (1) year or until a successor is selected. No member shall be eligible to serve 
more than three (3) consecutive terms in the same office. 

B. The Chair, Vice-Chair, and Second Vice-Chair for the WDB shall be elected by 
the WDB from among members appointed to the WDB pursuant to Section 
3 .1 (A) of these By-laws (i.e. a representative from a business in San Bernardino 
County), as prescribed by WIOA, Section 107(b )(3). The persons elected to the 
office of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Second Vice-Chair may be removed from office 
by a majority vote of the entire WDB membership. 

11 

San Bernardino County Workforce Development Board Amended and Restated Bv-!alt's 



C. Elections shall be conducted annually at a General WDB meeting between 
October and December. The new terms of office for the Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Second Vice-Chair will begin on the first business day of January of the following 
year. 

D. Each year, a nominating ad hoc committee shall be appointed by the WDB Chair 
for the purpose of proposing a slate of officers. Once the Nominating Committee 
has proposed a slate of officers, other nominations may be made from the floor 
during the WDB meeting in which the slate is presented. 

E. A vacancy in an office shall exist in the case of death, resignation, removal, or 
disqualification resulting when an officer no longer meets the criteria, under 
which they were nominated, or any unresolvable conflict of interest or 
impropriety, such as failure to comply with these By-laws, or conduct detrimental 
to the interest of the WDB. 

F. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Chair, the Vice-Chair shall succeed 
immediately to the office of Chair and possess all the powers to perform all the 
duties of that office for the remainder of the Chair's unexpired term. 

G. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Vice-Chair, the Second Vice-Chair shall 
succeed immediately to the office of Vice-Chair. 

H. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Second Vice-Chair, the office shall be 
filled in accordance with paragraph (B) above for the unexpired term of that 
office. 

6.3-Chair 

The Chair is the elected representative of the WDB and spokesperson for the policies 
established by the WDB. 

A. The Chair works under the advice, direction, and consent of the WDB, and is 
responsible for representing the collective thinking and actions of the WDB. The 
Chair shall: 

1. Preside over and conduct WDB meetings in accordance with these By
laws, the Brown Act, and any other applicable laws or policies. 

11. Convene meetings of the WDB in accordance with these By-laws and 
establish meeting protocols as may be required but in accordance with 
parliamentary procedure. 

111. Represent the WDB membership at State Designated Workforce Entity 
meetings. 

12 

San Bernardino Counly Workforce Derelopment Board Amended and Restated Ev-laws 



1v. Act as the liaison for the WDB to the BOS or its designee(s). 

v. Inform the Career Services Provider of changes of policy passed by the 
WDB for implementation of newly formulated WDB policies and/or 
procedures. 

v1. Annually appoint a chair for each standing committee set forth in Section 
8.1 of these By-laws and fill by appointment any vacancies in such 
positions. 

vn. Create and dissolve ad-hoc committees, and appoint and dismiss a chair 
for each ad-hoc committee. 

v111. Sign the Workforce Development Area Four-Year Local Plan after its 
approval by the WDB. 

B. The Chair shall obtain the advice and consent of the WDB before acting in all 
matters not specifically delegated herein to the Chair. Those duties and 
responsibilities not specifically delegated herein to the Chair are retained by the 
WDB, and require the advice and consent of the WDB before action or 
implementation by the Chair. 

6.4 - Vice-Chair 

At the request of the Chair, or in the event of the Chair's absence or disability, or vacancy 
in the office of Chair, the Vice-Chair shall perform the duties and possess and exercise 
the powers of the Chair. 

6.5 - Second Vice-Chair 

The Second Vice-Chair shall have such powers and duties as from time to time may be 
assigned by the Chair, including duties of the Chair or Vice-Chair during the absences or 
disabilities or vacancies of the Chair and Vice-Chair as may be applicable. 

6.6 - Secretary 

The Secretary shall have charge of the records of the WDB and shall also perform the 
duties usually incident to the office of Secretary. 

ARTICLE VII- EXECUTNE BOARD 

The WDB shall maintain an Executive Board, which shall consist of the Chair, the Vice
Chair, the Second Vice-Chair, the immediate past Chair of the WDB, and three (3) to five 

13 

San Bernardino Coullly Workforce Dere/opment Board Amended and Restated By-/a11·s 



(5) WDB members at-large. In the event that the immediate past Chair cannot serve on 
the Executive Board, the Chair may appoint another member of the WDB to serve in 
his/her seat. The Executive Board shall consist ofless than a quorum of the WDB. 

The Chair shall chair the Executive Board. The Executive Board may convene a 
meeting, noticed in accordance with the Brown Act. The Executive Board may take 
action on any urgent matters that cannot be timely acted upon by the WDB because of the 
timing of WDB general meetings or the lack of quorum at a WDB meeting. Any such 
matters acted upon by the Executive Board shall be considered for WDB ratification at 
the next subsequent WDB meeting. 

ARTICLE VIII - COMMITTEES 

8.1 - Standing Committees 

The standing committees of the WDB are: the Youth Committee, the Economic 
Development and Business Resource Committee, and the Special Populations 
Committee. The Chair shall appoint the chair of each standing committee from amongst 
members of the WDB in good standing. The chair of each standing committee shall, with 
the concurrence of the Chair of the WDB, appoint the members of each standing 
committee. The chair of a standing committee (Committee Chair), with the concurrence 
of the Chair, may also dismiss any member of the standing committee. The Chair may 
form other Standing Committees as deemed necessary by the Chair and in accordance 
with Section 8.1. 

Every member of the WDB is encouraged to participate as a member of at least one 
standing committee. WDB members may volunteer for committee participation and are 
assigned by the WDB Chair or Committee Chair. Each standing committee shall consist 
ofless than a quorum of the WDB. 

Non-WDB members may participate on standing committees per WIOA, Section 
107(b )( 4) at the invitation of the WDB Chair or Committee Chair, including voting 
privileges at the committee level, but shall have no voting privileges on the WDB. Such 
committee members shall have appropriate experience and expertise in the standing 
committee's area of focus. 

8.2-Ad-Hoc Committees 

Ad-hoc committees may be created and dissolved at the discretion of the Chair pursuant 
to Section 6.3.A.vii of these By-laws. Upon the creation of an ad-hoc committee and 
appointment of a chair from amongst members of the WDB in good standing, the chair of 
the ad-hoc committee shall, with the concurrence of the Chair, appoint the members of 
the committee. The chair of an ad-hoc committee, with the concurrence of the Chair, 

14 

San Bemardino County Workforce Dere/opment Board Amended and Restated By-lail'S 



may also dismiss any member of the ad-hoc committee. Each ad-hoc committee shall 
consist ofless than a quorum of the WDB and/or a standing committee. 

8.3 - Committee Information 

The name of each member of a standing committee or ad-hoc committee, together with 
all papers, information, or other data bearing on the subject or question to be considered 
by the committee, shall be recorded and supplied to the WDB membership upon request. 

ARTICLE IX- INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1- Defense and Indemnification 

Refer to County of San Bernardino Policy Manual No. 02-09. A copy shall be provided 
to each member upon appointment. 

9.2 - Fidelity and Bond Insurance 

The WDB shall have the power to purchase and maintain fidelity and bond insurance on 
WDB members and staff to the extent that such power is authorized by the BOS or 
granted by statute. 

ARTICLE X-P ARLIAMENTARY PRACTICES 

The Chair shall preserve order and decorum of meetings and set forth the standard for 
parliamentary practices. 

ARTICLE XI - EXPENSES 

Allowable expenses while attending WDB business may be reimbursed by the WDB at 
prevailing County rates. Reimbursement of the actual cost of expenses is to be in 
accordance with the rate allowed elected officers of San Bernardino County. 

ARTICLE XII-AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 

These By-laws may be amended through the following process: 

A. A proposed amendment to these By-laws shall be submitted in writing at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the regularly scheduled and noticed meeting of the 
WDB at which the amendment is submitted to the WDB. 

15 

San Bernardino Coun(v Workforce Dere/opment Board Amended and Restated By-laws 



B. An amendment must be adopted by a majority vote of the entire WDB 
membership, and approved by the BOS. 

ARTICLE XIII - EFFECT 

These By-laws shall become effective upon adoption by a majority vote of the WDB and 
approval of the BOS, and shall remain.in effect until dissolution of the WDB, or amended 
pursuant to Article XII of these By-laws. 

In any conflict arising between the provisions of the Act, applicable State law, or other 
implementing regulations, the legal provisions of law and regulation shall prevail, except 
to the extent these By-laws represent allowable discretion of the WDB in interpretation 
and implementation of law and regulation. 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

I certify that I am the duly appointed Secretary of the SAN BERNARDINO 
COUNTY WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD (WDB) and that the above By
laws, consisting of 16 pages, are the by-laws of this body as originally adopted by the 
WDB on January 20, 2016 and amended and restated on , 2020. 

Executed on , 2020, at San Bernardino, California ---------

Devra Bell, WDB Secretary 

16 

San Bernardino County Workforce Dei·e!opment Board Amended and Restaled By-laws 


